
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI

May 23, 2023
AGENDA
10:00 AM

CALL TO ORDER BY THE PRESIDENT

INVOCATION

1. REV. DR. JOHN E. CAMERON, SR OF GREATER MOUNT CALVARY M.B.
CHURCH

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC HEARING

INTRODUCTIONS

PUBLIC COMMENTS

CONSENT AGENDA

2. NOTE: "ALL MATTERS LISTED UNDER THE CONSENT AGENDA ARE
CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND WILL BE
ENACTED BY ONE MOTION IN THE FORM LISTED BELOW.  THERE
WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS. IF DISCUSSION
IS DESIRED, THAT ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT
AGENDA AND CONSIDERED SEPARATELY."

3. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 24, 2023 SPECIAL ZONING COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES. (S.JORDAN, FOOTE)

4. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 25, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES. (S.JORDAN, FOOTE)

5. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 27, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL/CITIZEN'S
AGENDA  MEETING MINUTES. (S.JORDAN, FOOTE)

6. APPROVAL OF THE MAY 9, 2023 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES. (S.JORDAN, FOOTE)

7. APPROVAL OF THE MAY 15, 2023 REGULAR ZONING COUNCIL
MEETING MINUTES. (S.JORDAN, FOOTE)

8. RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PARCELS OF REAL PROPERTY IN
THE CITY OF JACKSON TO BE A MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH,

CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=15158&MeetingID=467
CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=15150&MeetingID=467
CoverSheet.aspx?ItemID=15162&MeetingID=467
shanekiam
Text Box
REVISED



SAFETY, AND WELFARE PURSUANT TO SECTION 21-19-11 OF THE
MISSISSIPPI CODE AND BASED ON ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS HELD
ON FEBRUARY 7, 2023 FOR THE FOLLOWING CASES:

21-204          21-494          21-887          22-1054          22-1825          22-2163
21-205          22-716          22-910          22-1386          22-1953          22-2165
22-228          21-788          22-1003        22-1496          22-2034          22-2307
22-431          22-791          22-1011        22-1529          22-2079          22-2319
22-463          21-842          22-1053        21-1648          22-2121          

9. RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PARCELS OF REAL PROPERTY IN
THE CITY OF JACKSON TO BE A MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH,
SAFETY, AND WELFARE PURSUANT TO SECTION 21-19-11 OF THE
MISSISSIPPI CODE AND BASED ON ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS HELD
JANUARY 24, 2023 FOR THE FOLLOWING CASES:

 
21-526              21-747             22-335             22-1543           22-1809          
22-2173            22-2176           21-355             21-475             21-540           
21-1177            21-1992           21-2032           21-1193           22-1767           
 

10. RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PARCELS OF REAL PROPERTY IN
THE CITY OF JACKSON TO BE A MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH,
SAFETY, AND WELFARE PURSUANT TO SECTION 21-19-11 OF THE
MISSISSIPPI CODE AND BASED ON ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS HELD
MARCH 21, 2023 FOR THE FOLLOWING CASES:

 
22-410            23-624         22-2523        22-2106          22-1949           
22-1860          22-1199
 

11. RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PARCELS OF REAL PROPERTY IN
THE CITY OF JACKSON TO BE A MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH,
SAFETY, AND WELFARE PURSUANT TO SECTION 21-19-11 OF THE
MISSISSIPPI CODE AND BASED ON ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS HELD
ON FEBRUARY 28, 2023 FOR THE FOLLOWING CASES:
 
22-2427          22-721            21-372            21-612            22-2262            22-1955
22-835            22-116            21-925            21-773            22-1359            23-2
22-336            22-115            21-1216          21-580            21-1483            
22-282            22-670            22-247            21-385            23-180            
22-837            21-462            21-1498          21-671            22-800            

12. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON AND TRIARC MANAGEMENT
SERVICES LLC TO DEMOLISH A STRUCTURE, FOUNDATION, STEPS
AND DRIVEWAY, TO CUT GRASS AND WEEDS, TO REMOVE TRASH AND
DEBRIS, AND TO PERFORM OTHER WORK TO REMEDY THE
CONDITIONS ON STATE-OWNED PROPERTY THAT CONSTITUTE A
MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING
TO MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE-
22-1521 LOCATED AT 245 ARCHER AVE.  PARCEL #613-230- $5,000.00.
(WARD 7)  (DOTSON, LUMUMBA)



13. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON AND R & C SERVICES, LLC. TO
DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE, FOUNDATION, STEPS, AND DRIVEWAY;
CUT GRASS AND WEEDS; REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS; AND REMEDY
CONDITIONS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY WHICH CONSTITUTE A MENACE
TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING TO
MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE-21-
685 LOCATED AT 1804 BAILEY AVE. PARCEL #98-129 – $4,750.00 – WARD
7 (DOTSON, LUMUMBA)

14. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON AND R & C SERVICES, LLC. TO
DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE, FOUNDATION, STEPS, AND DRIVEWAY;
CUT GRASS AND WEEDS; REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS; AND REMEDY
CONDITIONS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY WHICH CONSTITUTE A MENACE
TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING TO
MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE-21-
1563 LOCATED AT 946 N. CONGRESS ST. PARCEL #39-56– $8,600.00 –
WARD 7 (DOTSON, LUMUMBA)

15. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON AND LOVE TRUCKING CO., INC. TO
DEMOLISH A STRUCTURE, FOUNDATION, STEPS AND DRIVEWAY, TO
CUT GRASS AND WEEDS, TO REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS, AND TO
PERFORM OTHER WORK TO REMEDY THE CONDITIONS ON STATE-
OWNED PROPERTY THAT CONSTITUTE A MENACE TO PUBLIC
HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE
ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE-22-144 LOCATED AT 151
WOODY DR.  PARCEL #625-38-2- $6,400.00. (WARD 7) (DOTSON,
LUMUMBA)

16. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON AND SOCRATES GARRETT
ENTERPRISES, INC. TO DEMOLISH THE STRUCTURE, FOUNDATION,
STEPS, AND DRIVEWAY; CUT GRASS AND WEEDS; REMOVE TRASH AND
DEBRIS; AND REMEDY CONDITIONS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY WHICH
CONSTITUTE A MENACE TO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE
ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11
FOR CASE #CE-21-866 – 5478 QUEEN MARY LN. – $5,925.00 – (WARD 4)
(DOTSON, LUMUMBA)

17. ORDER AUTHORIZING CANCELLATION OF LIEN WITH THE HINDS
COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR FOR ADJUDICATED COSTS AND PENALTIES
ASSESSED FOR CLEANING PARCEL NUMBER 128-202 LOCATED AT 934
CLAIBORNE AVENUE, JACKSON MISSISSIPPI. (DOTSON, LUMUMBA)

18. ORDER ACCEPTING PAYMENT OF $1,600.42 FROM STATE FARM
INSURANCE COMPANY ON BEHALF OF THEIR INSURED ROY
DAVIDSON AS A VEHICLE PROPERTY DAMAGE SETTLEMENT.
(C.MARTIN, LUMUMBA)

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES

REGULAR AGENDA



19. CLAIMS (MALEMBEKA, LUMUMBA)
20. PAYROLL  (MALEMBEKA, LUMUMBA)
21. ORDER CONFIRMING THE MAYOR’S APPOINTMENT OF SHARON

THAMES AS DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION,
CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI. (LUMUMBA)

22. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT
WITH eCIVIS, Inc FOR SERVICES RELATED TO THE IMPLEMENTATION
OF A GRANTS NETWORK SYSTEM AND SUBSCRIPTION TO THE CLOUD
HOSTED SaaS GRANTS MANAGEMENT PLATFORM. (LUMUMBA)

23. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING WITH THE PRESIDENT AND FELLOWS OF HARVARD
COLLEGE ACTING THROUGH THE TAUBMAN CENTER FOR STATE
AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT AT THE HARVARD KENNEDY SCHOOL
REGARDING THE GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FELLOW AND
GOVERNMENT PERFORMANCE LAB. (LUMUMBA)

24. ORDER REVISING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR
THE CITY OF JACKSON POLICE DEPARTMENT. (DAVIS, LUMUMBA)

25. ORDER ACCEPTING THE BID OF ACTIVE SOLUTIONS, LLC FOR A
THIRTY-SIX (36) MONTH SUPPLY OF SAFECITYCAM SURVEILLANCE
CAMERAS AND INSTALLATION AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
EXECUTE A SALES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON
AND ACTIVE SOLUTIONS, LLC. (DAVIS, LUMUMBA)

26. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE CONTRIBUTION OF MATCHING FUNDS TO
VARIOUS ORGANIZATIONS FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUPPORTING THE
DEVELOPMENT OF THE ARTS OR SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
PROGRAMS AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE
CONTRACTS WITH THE ENTITIES RECEIVING MATCHING FUNDS.
(WRIGHT, LUMUMBA)

27. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT
WITH CREATIVE RESEARCH SOLUTIONS (CRS) TO SERVE AS
CONSULTANT FOR THE CITY OF JACKSON TO CONDUCT EVALUATION
ASSESSMENTS FOR THE W.K. KELLOGG FOUNDATION-FUNDED
PROJECT, ECONOMIC PATHWAYS TO HUMAN DIGNITY: BUILDING
OCCUPATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES & ECONOMIC GROWTH (EPHD).
(DOTSON, LUMUMBA)

28. ORDER RATIFYING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO
AN AGREEMENT WITH SERVICEMASTER COMMERCIAL CLEANING
OF JACKSON TO PROVIDE JANITORIAL SERVICES AND SUPPLIES FOR
THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING AND CUSTOMER SERVICE OFFICE
(UNION STATION) OF THE CITY OF JACKSON’S PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM (JTRAN) COMMENCING MAY 1,
2023.  (DOTSON, LUMUMBA)

29. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSON AND HOPE
ENTERPRISE CORPORATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE DIVERSITY
PILOT PROGRAM. (DOTSON, LUMUMBA) 



30. ORDER DECLARING PARCEL NUMBER 112-1 SURPLUS PROPERTY AND
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE DEED OF CONVEYANCE
AND OTHER DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO DONATE SAID PROPERTY
TO JACKSON RESOURCE CENTER FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A
TRANSITIONAL HOUSING CENTER. (DOTSON, LUMUMBA) 

31. ORDER AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET OF THE CITY
OF JACKSON DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY. (REID,
LUMUMBA)

32. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A FORTY-EIGHT (48)
MONTH RENTAL AGREEMENT WITH ADVANTAGE BUSINESS SYSTEMS
FOR A KONICA MINOLTA BIZHUB C750i DIGITAL BLACK/WHITE AND
COLOR SYSTEM AND THE KONICA MINOLTA BIZHUB  4750i DIGITAL
(BLACK/WHITE) TO BE USED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
WORKS. (R.LEE, LUMUMBA)

33. ORDER RATIFYING CONTRACTS RELATED TO THE EMERGENCY
REPAIRS TO THALIA MARA HALL AND THE ARTS CENTER OF
MISSISSIPPI IN PREPARATION FOR THE U.S.A. INTERNATIONAL
BALLET COMPETITION. (R.LEE, LUMUMBA)

34. ORDER RATIFYING A CONTRACT WITH MS TIRE RECYCLING FOR
TIRE COLLECTION AND RECYCLING FOR THE SOLID WASTE
DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
AUTHORIZING PAYMENT. (R.LEE, LUMUMBA)

35. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT
WITH THE PUBLIC RIGHTS PROJECT TO REPRESENT THE CITY IN
CHALLENGING THE LEGALITY OF ACTIONS TAKEN DURING THE 2023
MISSISSIPPI LEGISLATIVE SESSION. (C.MARTIN, LUMUMBA)

36. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A RENEWAL
CONTRACT WITH TIM HOWARD TO PROVIDE INDIGENT DEFENDER
LEGAL SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI.
(C.MARTIN, LUMUMBA)

37. ORDER AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF $30,000.00 TO THE ESTATE OF
REGUS MCCULLEN AS FULL AND COMPLETE SETTLEMENT OF
PROPERTY CLAIM. (C.MARTIN, LUMUMBA)

38. ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH
KAYLA POWER TO SERVE AS A LEGAL INTERN FOR THE OFFICE OF
THE CITY ATTORNEY. (C.MARTIN, LUMUMBA) 

39. ORDER REVIEWING AND CONTINUING AUGUST 29, 2022 STATE OF
EMERGENCY. (C.MARTIN, LUMUMBA)

40. RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
HONORING, RECOGNIZING AND SUPPORTING THE ANNUAL
JUNETEENTH FREEDOM AND UNITY CULTURAL CELEBRATION.
(STOKES)

41. ORDER REVIEWING AND CONTINUING STATE OF EMERGENCY.
(JACKSON CITY COUNCIL) 

42. RESOLUTION OF CITY COUNCIL OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI IN
SUPPORT OF RECOGNIZING THE MONTH OF MAY AS NATIONAL



TENNIS MONTH AND HONORING MS. VENECCA GREEN FOR HER
EFFORTS TO PROMOTE TENNIS TO CITIZENS OF JACKSON,
MISSISSIPPI AT BATTLEFIELD PARK. (JACKSON CITY COUNCIL)

DISCUSSION

43. DISCUSSION: REVIEW AND CONTINUATION OF COVID-19 LOCAL
EMERGENCY  (JACKSON CITY COUNCIL)

44. DISCUSSION: JMAA (LUMUMBA)
45. DISCUSSION: LITIGATION (C.MARTIN)

PRESENTATION

PROCLAMATION

RESOLUTIONS

REPORT FROM MEMBERS, MAYOR, DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS

46. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS AS REQUIRED ACCORDING TO
SECTION 21-35-13 OF THE MISSISSIPPI CODE ANNOTATED OF 1972.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

AGENDA ITEMS IN COMMITTEE







 SPECIAL ZONING MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

                                     MONDAY, APRIL 24, 2023 2:30 P.M.                              108 

  MINUTE BOOK 6X 

BE IT REMEMBERED that a Special Zoning Meeting of the City Council of Jackson, 

Mississippi was convened in the Council Chambers in City Hall at 2:30 p.m. on April 24, 2023, 

being the fourth Monday of said month when and where the following things were had and done 

to wit: 

 

 Present: Council Members: Ashby Foote, Council President, Ward 1; Brian Grizzell, 

Ward 4 (via teleconference); Vernon Hartley, Ward 5 (via teleconference) 

and Aaron Banks, Ward 6. Directors: Sabrina Shelby, Chief Deputy Clerk 

of Council; Victor Allen, Chief Deputy Clerk of Council; Ester Ainsworth, 

Zoning Administrator and Kristie Metcalfe, Deputy City Attorney. 

 

 Absent:   Angelique Lee, Vice President, Ward 2; Kenneth I. Stokes, Ward 3 and 

Virgi Lindsay, Ward 7. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

   

The meeting was called to order by President Ashby Foote. 

  

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

President Foote recognized Zoning Administrator Ester Ainsworth who provided the Council 

with a procedural history of Zoning Case No. 4203, including all applicable ordinances, statutes, 

and a brief review of documents included in the Council agenda packets which were the applicable 

zoning map, future land use map, photos of the subject area, staff report, application with exhibits 

and planning board meeting minutes.  

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 

President Foote requested that the Clerk read the Order: 

 

 ORDER GRANTING HARVEY WILLIAMS SR. A SPECIAL EXCEPTION TO 

 ALLOW FOR A RESIDENTIAL COMMUNITY FACLITY WITHIN A R-1 

 (SINGLE-FAMILY) RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR THE PROPERTY 

 LOCATED AT 5129 ANDOVER DR. (PARCEL 640-428) CASE NO. 4203. 

WHEREAS, Harvey Williams Sr. has filed a petition for a Special Exception to allow for 

a residential community facility within a R-1 (Single-Family) Residential District for the property 

located at 5129 Andover Dr. (Parcel 640-428), in the City of Jackson, First Judicial District of 

Hinds County, Mississippi; and 

WHEREAS, the Jackson City Planning Board, after holding the required public hearing 

has recommended approval of a Special Exception to allow for a residential community facility 

within a R-1 (Single-Family) Residential District; and 

WHEREAS, notice was duly and legally given to property owners and interested citizens 

that a meeting of the Jackson City Council would be held at the City Hall at 2:30 p.m., April 17, 

2023 to consider said petition based upon the record of the case as developed before the Jackson 

City Planning Board; and 

WHEREAS, it appeared to the satisfaction of the Jackson City Council that notice of said 

petition had been published in the Mississippi Link on March 2, 2023 and March 16, 2023 that a 

hearing had been held by the Jackson City Planning Board on March 22, 2023, as provided for by 

ordinances of the City of Jackson and the laws of the State of Mississippi, and that the Jackson 

City Planning Board had recommended approval of a Special Exception for the above described 

property within an existing R-1 (Single-Family) Residential Zoning District of the City of Jackson; 

and 

WHEREAS, it appears to the Jackson City Council that the documents are in order and 

that the recommendation of the Planning Board to approve a Special Exception to allow for a 

residential community facility within a R-1 (Single-Family) Residential District does support the 

promotion of the public health, safety, morals, the general welfare of the community and the 

granting of such will not adversely affect adjacent property owners.  

shanekiam
Text Box
Consent Agenda Item No. 3May 23, 2023(S.Jordan, Foote)



 SPECIAL ZONING MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

                                     MONDAY, APRIL 24, 2023 2:30 P.M.                              109 

  MINUTE BOOK 6X 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI:  

That the property located in the First Judicial District of Hinds County, Jackson, Mississippi, and 

being more particularly described as follows: 

Lot Sixty-five (65), Clinton Boulevard Subdivision, part 5, a subdivision according to a map or 

plat thereof which is on file and of record in the office of the Chancery Clerk of Hinds County at 

Jackson, Mississippi, in Plat Book 16 at Page 40 thereof, reference to which is hereby made in 

aid of and as a part of this description.  

be and is hereby granted a Special Exception to allow for a residential community facility within a 

R-1 (Single-Family) Residential District for the property located at 5129 Andover Dr. (Parcel 640-

428).   However, that before for any structure is erected or use thereof on the said property, the 

applicant must meet the requirements established through the Site Plan Review process. 

Council Member Banks moved adoption; Council Member Hartley seconded. 

        _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 

President Foote recognized Harvey Williams Sr., Applicant, who spoke in favor of a Special 

Exception for a residential community facility in a R-1 (Single-Family) Residential District. 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 

There was no opposition from the public. 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 

Thereafter, President Foote called for a vote on said item: 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell and Hartley. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Lee, Lindsay and Stokes.  

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

Cancelled Special Exceptions\Use Permits – No Action Required 

 

 (Ward 3) SE 2905 – Mary Tillman – 3651 Moseley Avenue. – (Parcel 425-353) 

• SE was granted to Mary Tillman on April 4, 1992 to operate a Personal Care Facility 

for up to Twelve (12) Residents within an R-4 (Limited Multi-Family) Residential 

District.  

 

• Cancellation was based upon non-response from the grantee by the deadline date April 

3, 2023. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

ORDER GRANTING EXTENSION OF SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS AND USE 

PERMITS FOR ONE YEAR. 

 Coming for consideration are requests for the approval of the following for certification of 

renewal for one year and after the anniversary date of approval for Use Permit or Special 

Exceptions as follows: 

CASE NO. NAME LOCATION USE GRANTED 

 

SE – 3290 

Ward 2 

 

Southern 

Consultants 
5740 County Cork Rd. Engineering Office 03/01/90 

 

SE –3048 

Ward 4 

 

Deborah Harper 
405 Queen Margaret 

Lane 

One-Chair Beauty 

Salon 
4/5/95 

     



 SPECIAL ZONING MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

                                     MONDAY, APRIL 24, 2023 2:30 P.M.                              110 

  MINUTE BOOK 6X 

C-UP–3894 

Ward 1 
Meena Sabharwal 

1625 E. County Line 

Rd. - Suite 320 

Jackson, MS 39206 

 

Operation of a  

Liquor Store 
4/20/15 

SE – 3962 

Ward 7 

 

Morrison Heights 

Baptist Church 

 

142 E. Bell St. 
Residential 

Community Facility 
4/17/17 

C-UP–4168 

Ward 3 

Byron & Octavia 

Poindexter 
210 & 212 W. Ash St. Rooming House 4/18/22 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by the Council of the City of Jackson that the said Use 

Permits and/or Special Exceptions be and the same are hereby extended for another year from and 

after the anniversary date granting said permits. 

Council Member Banks moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell and Hartley. 

Nays – None 

Absent – Lee, Lindsay, and Stokes.  

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, it was unanimously voted to 

adjourn until the next Regular Council Meeting to be held at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, April 25, 

2023. At 3:15 p.m., the Council stood adjourned. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

PREPARED BY:    APPROVED: 

 

                                   ____________                                                     ,______         ___                        

CLERK OF COUNCIL              COUNCIL PRESIDENT    DATE 

  

                                         ____________     

      MAYOR 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

                                         ____________     

      CITY CLERK 

 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 





REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   111 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of Jackson, 

Mississippi, was convened at City Hall at 10:00 a.m. on April 25, 2023, being the fourth Tuesday 

of said month, when and where the following things were had and done to wit: 

  

Present: Council Members: Ashby Foote, Council President, Ward 1; Angelique Lee, Vice-

President, Ward 2; Brian Grizzell, Ward 4; Vernon Hartley, Ward 5; Aaron Banks, 

Ward 6 and Virgi Lindsay, Ward 7. Directors: Chokwe Antar Lumumba, Mayor; 

Shanekia Mosley-Jordan, Clerk of Council; Sabrina Shelby, Chief Deputy Clerk of 

Council and Catoria Martin, City Attorney. 

 

Absent:           Kenneth Stokes, Ward 3.  

 

 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

 The meeting was called to order by President Foote. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

The invocation was offered by Dr. David Strain of First Presbyterian Church of Jackson.  

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

The Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 30, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES.  

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 30, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL/CITIZEN'S 

AGENDA MEETING MINUTES.  

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 1, 2023 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES.  

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

 

 

shanekiam
Text Box
Consent Agenda Item No. 4May 23, 2023(S.Jordan, Foote)



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   112 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF JACKSON AND TRIARC MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC TO 

CUT GRASS AND WEEDS; REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS; AND REMEDY 

CONDITIONS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY WHICH CONSTITUTE A MENACE TO 

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI 

CODE ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE-21-818 – 3150 

TOUGALOO STREET – $1,200.00.  

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2022, the Jackson City Council approved a resolution 

declaring certain parcels of real property in the City of Jackson to be a menace to public health, 

safety, and welfare pursuant to Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code following an 

administrative hearing held on August 9, 2022 for Case #CE-21-818 located in Ward 5 of the City 

of Jackson; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Improvement Division of the Planning and Development 

Department maintains a list of licensed, bonded, and insured contractors that received and 

responded to the request for bids for the project located at 3150 Tougaloo St. and 

 

WHEREAS, Triarc Management Services LLC, submitted the lowest bid of $1,200.00; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, a municipal contract for the professional services of a contractor is not 

subject to advertising and bidding requirements set forth in Section 31-7-13 of the Mississippi 

Code of 1972; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed, Triarc Management Services 

LLC. through its representative, Stacey Stowers, has agreed to cut grass, weeds, shrubbery, fence 

line, bushes, and saplings; remove trash, debris, tires, fallen tree parts, wooden boards, crates, 

appliances, old furniture, building materials, old bricks and clean curbside; and remedy conditions 

constituting a menace to public health, safety, and welfare for the parcel located at 3150 Tougaloo 

St. in an amount not to exceed $1,200.00; and 

 

WHEREAS, Triarc Management Services LLC. has a principal office located at 644 E. 

Rhinewalt Rd. Lena, MS 39094, according to the information appearing on the Mississippi 

Secretary of State’s website. 

 

 IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Mayor is authorized to execute a contract 

with Triarc Management Services, LLC upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed, to cut 

vegetation and remedy conditions on the property located at 3150 Tougaloo St. deemed to be a 

menace to public health, safety, and welfare. 

 

IT IS FURTHER HEREBY ORDERED that a sum not to exceed $1,200.00 shall be paid 

to Triarc Management Services, LLC upon the completion of the services provided from funds 

budgeted for the Division. 

 

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF JACKSON AND QUALITYLANDSCAPE & LAWN MAINTENACE 

INC, TO BOARD UP AND SECURE THE STRUCTURE(S) AND/OR CUT GRASS 

AND WEEDS; REMOVE TRASH AND DEBRIS; AND REMEDYCONDITIONS 

ON PRIVATE PROPERTYWHICHCONSTITUTE A MENACE TO PUBLIC 

HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE ACCORDING TO MISSISSIPPI CODE 

ANNOTATED SECTION 21-19-11 FOR CASE #CE- 21-1333 306 FORD AVE. – 

$1,247.00.  



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   113 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

WHEREAS, on July 5, 2022, the Jackson City Council approved a resolution declaring 

certain parcels of real property in the City of Jackson to be a menace to public health, safety, and 

welfare pursuant to Section 21-19-11 of the Mississippi Code following an administrative hearing 

held on June 14, 2022 for Case #CE-21-1333 located in Ward 4 of the City of Jackson; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Improvement Division of the Planning and Development 

Department maintains a list of licensed, bonded, and insured contractors that received and 

responded to the request for bids for the project located at 306 Ford Ave.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Quality Landscape and Lawn Maintenance Inc. submitted the lowest bid of 

$1,247.00; and 

 

WHEREAS, a municipal contract for the professional services of a contractor is not 

subject to advertising and bidding requirements set forth in Section 31-7-13 of the Mississippi 

Code of 1972; and 

 

WHEREAS, upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed, Quality Landscape and Lawn 

Maintenance Inc. through its representative, Quinton Kelly, has agreed to board up and  secure 

structure(s) and/or cut grass, weeds, shrubbery, fence line, bushes, and saplings; remove trash, 

debris, tires, fallen tree parts, wooden boards, crates, appliances, old furniture, building materials, 

old bricks and clean curbside; and remedy conditions constituting a menace to public health, 

safety, and welfare for the parcel located at 306 Ford Ave. in an amount not to exceed $1,247.00; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Quality Landscape and Lawn Maintenance Inc. has a principal office located 

at 133 Park Circle, Jackson, MS 39212, according to the information appearing on the Mississippi 

Secretary of State’s website. 

 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Mayor is authorized to execute a contract 

with Quality Landscape & Lawn Maintenance Inc., upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed, to 

cut vegetation and remedy conditions on the property located at 306 Ford Avenue deemed to be a 

menace to public health, safety, and welfare. 

 

IT IS FURTHER HEREBY ORDERED that a sum not to exceed $1,247.00 shall be paid 

to Quality Landscape and Lawn Maintenance upon the completion of the services provided from 

funds budgeted for the Division. 

 

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

There came on for consideration Agenda Item No. 8: 

 

ORDER APPROVING CLAIMS NUMBER 28732 to 28745 APPEARING AT 

PAGES 394 TO 400 INCLUSIVE THEREON, ON MUNICIPAL “DOCKET OF 

CLAIMS”, IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,590,283.99 AND MAKING 

APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF. President Foote stated said 

item would be taken up in Executive Session.  

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

ORDER APPROVING GROSS PAYROLL INCLUDING PAYROLL 

 DEDUCTION CLAIMS NUMBERED 28732 TO 28745 AND MAKING 

 APPROPRIATION FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF. 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that payroll deduction claims numbered 28732 to 28745 

inclusive therein, in the Municipal “Docket of Claims”, in the aggregate amount of $97,109.37 

plus payroll, are approved for payment and necessary amounts are appropriated from various 

municipal funds for transfer to the payroll fund for the immediate payment thereof. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   114 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

IT IS FINALLY ORDERED that the following expenditures from the accounts payable 

fund be made in order to pay amounts transferred thereto from the payroll fund for payment of the 

payroll deduction claims authorized herein for payment:    

 

         TO                                           TO 

FROM:                                                             ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                  PAYROLL     

                                                                                           FUND                                    FUND 

GENERAL FUND  2,269,483.16 

PARKS & RECR FUND  102,077.39 

LANDFILL FUND  18,418.22 

SENIOR AIDES  3,440.23 

WATER/SEWER OPER & MAINT  186,238.52 

PAYROLL  97,109.37  

HOUSING COMM DEV  8,506.36 

TITLE III AGING PROGRAMS  5,974.20 

TRANSPORTATION FUND  18,213.44 

PEG ACCESS-PROGRAMMING FUND  5,465.01 

2020 SAKI GRAND DOJ  7,405.71 

ZOOLOGICAL PARK  28,745.96 

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 2021              10,427.45 

NLC-MUNICIPAL REIMAGINING COMM  3,627.77 

TOTAL                                                                                                                      $2,668,023.42 

 

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Hartley seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI, ADOPTING THE 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE’S RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF MISSISSIPPI’S 

PROPOSED MILLAGE TAX TO SUPPORT THE COST-OF-LIVING 

ADJUSTMENT UNDER THE MUNICIAPL RETIREMENT SYSTEM.  

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson, Mississippi, participates in the Mississippi Municipal 

Retirement System and maintains a fund known as the “City Employee Retirement Fund, which 

is for the benefit of certain city employees: and 

WHEREAS, under the City of Jackson’s retirement plan, retired participants and 

beneficiaries currently receiving benefits receive a cost-of-living increase, which is funded through 

taxes levied on assessed properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees for the Public Employee’s Retirement System of 

Mississippi (PERS) will provide the City of Jackson with the cost-of-living increases that is 

authorized by Section 21-29-247(2) and (3) of the Mississippi Code Annotated, as amended, to the 

persons authorized and entitled to receive them, after the following conditions are met: 

(a) the governing authority of any municipality must adopt a resolution to provide for the cost-

of-living increases, and transmit the resolution to the Board of Trustees; and 

(b) the advisory board on the disability and relief fund must adopt a resolution supporting the 

providing of the cost-of-living increase and transmit the resolution to the Board of Trustees 

and 

(c) the Board of Trustees must receive the resolutions from the governing authorities and the 

advisory board and receive the most recent actuarial study of the disability and relief fund 

and the certified statement from the actuarial firm that the disability and relief fund will 

remain actuarially sound if the cost-of-living increases are provided; and 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   115 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

WHEREAS, according to the PERS Report of the Annual Valuation Covering the 

Participation of the City of Jackson in the Mississippi Municipal Retirement Systems prepared as 

of June 30, 2022, the millage rate is established at a level that will ensure actuarial soundness of 

the system; and 

WHEREAS, according to the valuation report, the City of Jackson’s current millage rate 

for fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, is less than the certified rate for the fiscal year ending 

September 30, 2024, under the funding policy; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson is required to increase its current millage rate to the 

certified millage rate for fiscal year ending September 30, 2024, which is 3.15; and 

WHEREAS, the governing authorities for the City of Jackson, Mississippi, adopt the 

certified millage rate of 3.15 for assessed property and authorizes the Department of the Municipal 

Clerk to provide this resolution to the Board of Trustees for the Public Employee’s Retirement 

System of Mississippi. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITIES 

OF THE CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI, that the City will establish a millage rate of no 

less than 3.15 mills, consistent with that certified by the PERS Actuarial Valuation for Fiscal Year 

2024 beginning October 1, 2023, and that the Board of Trustees of the Public Employees’ 

Retirement System of Mississippi is hereby directed to pay all of those persons receiving an 

allowance from said fund. 

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Hartley seconded. 

          _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 

President Foote recognized Fidelis Malembeka, Chief Financial Officer, who provided a brief 

overview of said item. 

                       _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

 

Thereafter, President Foote, called for a vote of said item:  

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A SERVICE 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN BUSINESS SYSTEMS & CONSULTANTS, 

INC. AND THE CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI FOR DOCUMENT 

SCANNING SERVICES FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL CLERK-

RECORDS MANAGEMENT FACILITY.  

WHEREAS, the Municipal Clerk solicited quotes from two (2) to provide digital 

conversion of paper documents to electronic records for the City of Jackson; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Clerk requested quotes for scanning services of approximately 

400,000 documents, which includes picking up the boxes of documents, scanning images, 

document preparation, and shredding of documents after scanning; and 

 

WHEREAS, Business Systems & Consultants, Inc., and Vital Records Control submitted 

quotes for the above-referenced services; and 

 

WHEREAS, Business Systems & Consultants, Inc. submitted to lowest and best quote; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Business Systems & Consultant, Inc. proposed the following fee schedule 

for the solicited services, as follows: 

 

a.  Capture Services – Black & White – Legal size and smaller - $.06/image 

(Scan, Publish to flash drive) 

b.  Document Preparation- $22.00/hour 

(Preparing documents for scanning, staple removal, and removal of fasteners) 

c.  Pick-up boxes- $1,535.00 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   116 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

Estimated Pricing 

             Approximately 400,000 x $.06/image = $24,000.00 

             Approximately 730 hours of document preparation @ $22/hour = $16,060 

            Total = $40,060.00 

 

WHEREAS, Business Systems & Consultants, Inc. will remove documents from folders 

or binders, remove staples, insert document separator sheets, verify all documents are facing 

upwards in one direction, visually check image quality on a PC monitor, check for skewed pages, 

light or dark images, missed documents breaks, rescan documents as needed, provide storage of 

hardcopy records up to sixty (60) days and provide shredding of documents; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Municipal Records recommends that governing 

authorities for the City of Jackson authorize the Mayor to execute a 24-month agreement with 

Business Systems & Consultants, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $40,060.00, a copy of which is 

attached to this Order and made a part of these minutes. 

 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a 

service agreement with Business Systems & Consultants, Inc. for the digital conversion of paper 

documents stored within the Records Management Facility located at 2525 Robinson Road for a 

24-month term commencing on May 1, 2023, through April 30, 2025, with an option to renew at 

no cost to the City of Jackson. 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   117 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   118 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

Council Member Hartley moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

ORDER REVISING THE 2022-2023 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET FOR THE 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN AND CULTURAL SERVICES.  

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson, Department of Human and Cultural Services requests a 

revision to its 2022-2023 fiscal budget to provide consistent and outstanding service to our 

employees and citizens; and 

 

            WHEREAS, the Department of Human and Cultural Services recommends that the 

governing authorities for the City of Jackson transfer funds in the amount of $90,000.00, to provide 

services and maintain needed repairs throughout the department and support the City of Jackson 

Summer Film Camp; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 21-35-25 of the Mississippi Code Annotated, as amended, states 

that if it affirmatively appears at any time during the current fiscal year that there is in any fund or 

account any sum remaining unexpended and not needed or expected to be needed for the purpose 

or purposes for which appropriated in said budget, then the governing authorities may, in their 

discretion, transfer such sum or any part thereof to any other fund or funds or account or accounts 

where needed, by order to such effect entered upon their minutes. This shall not, however, 

authorize the expenditure of any funds for any purpose other than that for which the levy producing 

such funds was made; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Human and Cultural Services represents that funds from 

Sundry-Contingencies will not be expended because Hinds County Human Resource Agency no 

longer requires the funds; therefore, these funds are not needed for that purpose; and 

 

      WHEREAS, the Department of Human and Cultural Services Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

recommends its budget be revised, as follows: 

 

 FUNDS TRANSFER FROM:                              FUNDS TRANSFER TO: 

Sundry-Contingencies 

001 43300 6739 $15,000 

ECD Security 

001-43300-6419 $15,000 

Sundry-Contingencies 

001 43300 6739 $15,000 

Senior Center Repairs (Sykes) 

001-43420 6317 $15,000  
Sundry-Contingencies 001 43300 6739 

$24,000 

Mary C Jones 001-43300-6317 $24,000  

Sundry-Contingencies 

001 43300 6739 $26,000 

Smith Robertson Museum 

001 43600 6848 $26,000  
Sundry-Contingencies 

001 43300 6739 $10,000 

Film Camp 

300-44346-6299 $10,000  
TOTAL $90,000 TOTAL $90,000 

 

WHEREAS, this intradepartmental transfer of Ninety Thousand Dollars ($90,000.00) is 

in statutory compliance with Section 21-35-25 of the Mississippi Code Annotated, as amended, as 

there have been no other budget amendments or revisions to the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget 

for the Department of Human and Cultural Services and this transfer does not exceed ten percent 

(10%) of the total budget amount appropriated to the Department of Human and Cultural Services 

in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. 

 

             IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Department of Human and Cultural Services 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 budget be revised as set forth above. 

 

Council Member Lindsay moved adoption; Vice President Lee seconded. 

         _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   119 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

President Foote recognized Louis Wright, Chief Administrative Officer, who provided a brief 

overview of said item. 

                       _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

 

Thereafter, President Foote, called for a vote of said item:  

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN ANTENNA SITE 

LICENSE AGREEMENT WITHT-MOBILE SOUTH, LLC TO MODIFY 

EQUIPMENT AND INCREASE LICENSEE FEES AT TWO TOWER SITES 

WITHIN THE CITYOF JACKSON.  

WHEREAS, Mississippi Code of 1972, Annotated, Section 21-17-5(1) vests the care, 

management, and control of the municipal affairs and its property and finances with the governing 

authorities; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mississippi Code of 1972, Annotated, Section 21-17-5(1) authorizes the 

governing authorities of the municipality to adopt an order concerning municipal affairs, property 

and finances with are not inconsistent with the Mississippi Constitution of 1890, the Mississippi 

Code of 1972, or any other statute or law of the State of Mississippi; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Information Technology, through the 

Telecommunications Division, needs to amend the Antenna Site License Agreements with T-

Mobile South, LLC that will modify T-Mobile’s equipment and increase the monthly license fees 

at two (2) towers, at Site 28/TCS, located at 2835 Oak Forest and Site 3/ FS 3 Tower, located at 

333 East Fortification Street; and 

 

WHEREAS, T-Mobile, with its principal office located at T-Mobile USA Incorporation, 

12920 SE 38th Street Bellevue, WA 98006, has proposed the following provisions for the tower 

located at 333 East Fortification Street: 

 

a) At the commencement of the first (1st) renewal term provided for by this fourth 

amendment, licensee shall pay licensor annual rent in the amount of Fifty-three 

Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty- nine and 05/100th Dollars ($53,829.05) per year (the 

“rent”), partial years to be prorated. Where duplicate rent would occur, a credit shall be 

taken by licensee for any prepayment of rent by licensee. 

b) Rent shall be adjusted annually on each anniversary of the First Renewal Term or any 

Additional Renewal Term by an amount equal to three and one-half percent (3.5%) 

over the Rent for the immediately preceding year. This new Rent and Rent adjustment 

shall supersede and replace any prior Rent or Rent adjustments.  

c) T-Mobile South, LLC may terminate the Agreement without further liability, upon 

thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City of Jackson ninety (90) days written 

notice for any or no reason.  

 

WHEREAS, T-Mobile, with its principal office located at T-Mobile USA Incorporation, 

12920 SE 38th Street Bellevue, WA 98006, has proposed the following provisions for the tower 

located at 2835 Oak Forest: 

 

a) At the commencement of the first (1st) renewal term provided for by this fourth 

amendment, T-Mobile South, LLC shall pay the City of Jackson annual rent in the 

amount of Thirty-nine Thousand Three- Hundred Eighty-Two and 28/100th Dollars 

($39,382.28) per year (the “rent”), partial years to be prorated. Where duplicate rent 

would occur, a credit shall be taken by licensee for any prepayment of rent by licensee. 

b) Rent shall be adjusted annually on each anniversary of the First Renewal Term or any 

Additional Renewal Term by an amount equal to three and one-half percent (3.5%) 

over the Rent for the immediately preceding year. This new Rent and Rent adjustment 

shall supersede and replace any prior Rent or Rent adjustments.  



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   120 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

c) T-Mobile South, LLC may terminate the Agreement without further liability, upon 

thirty (30) days prior written notice to the City of Jackson ninety (90) days written 

notice for any or no reason.  

 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Mayor shall be authorized to execute the 

Fourth Amendment to commencement Agreement for the property at Site 3/FS 3 Tower, located 

at 333 Fortification Street, Jackson, Hinds County, Mississippi, 39202. 

 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the Mayor shall be authorized to execute the 

reinstatement and Fourth Amendment to Antenna Site License Agreement for the property at the 

TCS, located at Site 28/2835 Oak Forest Drive, Jackson, Hinds County, Mississippi, 39212. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Mayor may perform those actions necessary to 

effect the purpose of this Order with the exception of expending municipal funds without further 

approval of the Jackson City Order. 

 

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

ORDER AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 

JACKSON DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.  

WHEREAS, since the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2023 City of Jackson budget for the 

Department of Public Works, the department is faced with unanticipated needs that will require a 

reallocation of funding; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works recommends that the governing authorities 

for the City of Jackson amend the Fiscal Year 2023 City of Jackson budget to provide funding for 

these unanticipated needs; and 

 

WHEREAS, if it affirmatively appears at any time during the current fiscal year that there 

is in any fund or account any sum remaining unexpended and not needed or expected to be needed 

for the purpose or purposes for which appropriated in said budget, then the governing authorities 

may, in their discretion, transfer such sum or any part thereof to any other fund or funds or account 

or accounts where needed, by order to such effect entered upon their minutes. This shall not, 

however, authorize the expenditure of any funds for any purpose other than that for which the levy 

producing such funds was made. Miss. Code. Ann. §21-35-25 (West); and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed changes in Fund 1 are necessary to reallocate funds from a 

vacant Deputy Director's position to upgrade the 5th-floor conference room's computer and 

conferencing equipment, replace well-outdated computers in the Engineering Office and Fiscal 

Office, and set aside funds for replacing signs for the renaming of Bobby Rush Boulevard and 

James Meredith Drive; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed changes in Fund 173 and Fund 372 are necessary to move funds 

intended for capitalized expenditures into the newer 6800 object codes for capitalized 

expenditures; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed changes to Fund 31 Water Sewer Engineering are necessary to 

move funds from an unfilled position to pay for temp work performed last summer and fall and 

for ongoing uniform expenses budgeted in the water half of this division; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed change in Fund 174 would move funds from data processing to 

other professional services to fully fund the CSL flow meter contract recently approved by the City 

Council; and 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   121 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

WHEREAS, any amendments made pursuant to this section to an originally adopted 

budget which exceed ten percent (10%) of the total amount appropriated or authorized to be 

expended in a particular department fund shall be published or posted within two (2) weeks of the 

action in a newspaper in the same manner as the final adopted budget. Separate amendments to an 

originally adopted budget during one fiscal year which affect a particular department fund shall be 

considered as one (1) amendment in determining whether the ten percent (10%) threshold requiring 

publication or posting has been reached. This publication or posted notice shall contain a 

description of the amendment, the amount of money and funds affected, and a detailed statement 

explaining the need and purpose of the amendment. The vote of each member of the municipality's 

governing authority on each amendment shall be included in the publication or posted notice. Miss. 

Code. Ann. §21-35-25 (West); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works recommends that the governing authorities 

amend the following accounts, as follows: 
 

From: Account      Amount      To: Account 

 

173 45135 6413   $    405,936.00   173 45135 6823 

173 45190 6413  $      99,863.00   173 45190 6823 

173 52290 6413   $    954,045.00   173 52290 6823 

173 45135 6485   $ 2,021,580.00   173 45135 6824 

173 45190 6485  $ 3,240,609.00   173 45190 6824 

173 52290 6485   $    855,264.00   173 52290 6824 

 

372 52290 6419   $ 132,639.00               372 52290 6823 

031 52210 6111   $    22,480.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $     3,000.00    031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $     2,247.00    031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $     8,000.00    031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $     2,088.00    031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $     1,850.00    031 52120 6516 

 

001 46110 6111   $   20,000.00    001 44830 6240 

001 46110 6111   $   11,080.00    001 46110 6240 

001 46110 6111   $     3,122.00    001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6131   $     1,877.00    001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6136   $        468.00    001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6133   $     5,613.00    001 45010 6240 

 

174 94400 6847   $   40,000.00    174 94400 6419 

 

                                                                                 Total: 7,831,761.00 

 

NOW, IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Department of Public Works Fiscal 

Year 2022-2023 budget be revised as follows: 

 

From: Account      Amount     To: Account 

 

173 45135 6413   $    405,936.00   173 45135 6823 

173 45190 6413  $      99,863.00   173 45190 6823 

173 52290 6413   $    954,045.00   173 52290 6823 

173 45135 6485   $ 2,021,580.00   173 45135 6824 

173 45190 6485  $ 3,240,609.00   173 45190 6824 

173 52290 6485   $    855,264.00   173 52290 6824 

 

372 52290 6419   $   132,639.00   372 52290 6823 

 

03152210 6111   $    22,480.00   031 52210 6489 

03152210 6111   $      3,000.00   031 52210 6489 

03152210 6111   $      2,247.00   031 52210 6489 

03152210 6111   $      8,000.00   031 52210 6489 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   122 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

031 52210 6111   $      2,088.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $      1,850.00   031 52120 6516 

 

001 46110 6111   $    20,000.00   001 44830 6240 

001 46110 6111   $    11,080.00   001 46110 6240 

001 46110 6111   $      3,122.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6131   $      1,877.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6136   $         468.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6133   $      5,613.00   001 45010 6240 

 

174 94400 6847   $    40,000.00   174 94400 6419 

 

                                                                                Total: 7,831,761.00 

IT IS, THEREFORE, FURTHER ORDERED pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 

2135-25, this budget revision shall be published or posted within two (2) weeks of approval, in a 

newspaper in the same manner as the final adopted budget. In accordance with Miss. Code Ann. 

Section 21-35-25, the published notice shall contain a description of the amendment, the amount 

of money and funds affected, and a detailed statement explaining the need and purpose of the 

amendment, as well as, the vote of each City Council member. 

 

Council Member Banks moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

                      _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 

President Foote recognized Terry Williamson, Legal Counsel, who stated that an amendment 

was needed in said order.  The order needed to be amended in the last WHEREAS and the NOW, 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED Sections changing account number “00144830 6240” to 

“00144830 6419”.  

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

 

President Foote recognized Council Member Banks who moved; seconded by Council Member 

Grizzell, to amend said order to reflect the changes as stated by Terry Williamson, Legal 

Counsel.  The motion prevailed by the following vote: 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes.   

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

 

Thereafter, President Foote called for a vote on said Order as amended: 

 

ORDER AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 

JACKSON DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS.  

WHEREAS, since the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2023 City of Jackson budget for the 

Department of Public Works, the department is faced with unanticipated needs that will require a 

reallocation of funding; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works recommends that the governing authorities 

for the City of Jackson amend the Fiscal Year 2023 City of Jackson budget to provide funding for 

these unanticipated needs; and 

 

WHEREAS, if it affirmatively appears at any time during the current fiscal year that there 

is in any fund or account any sum remaining unexpended and not needed or expected to be needed 

for the purpose or purposes for which appropriated in said budget, then the governing authorities 

may, in their discretion, transfer such sum or any part thereof to any other fund or funds or account 

or accounts where needed, by order to such effect entered upon their minutes. This shall not, 

however, authorize the expenditure of any funds for any purpose other than that for which the levy 

producing such funds was made. Miss. Code. Ann. §21-35-25 (West); and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed changes in Fund 1 are necessary to reallocate funds from a 

vacant Deputy Director's position to upgrade the 5th-floor conference room's computer and 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   123 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

conferencing equipment, replace well-outdated computers in the Engineering Office and Fiscal 

Office, and set aside funds for replacing signs for the renaming of Bobby Rush Boulevard and 

James Meredith Drive; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed changes in Fund 173 and Fund 372 are necessary to move funds 

intended for capitalized expenditures into the newer 6800 object codes for capitalized 

expenditures; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed changes to Fund 31 Water Sewer Engineering are necessary to 

move funds from an unfilled position to pay for temp work performed last summer and fall and 

for ongoing uniform expenses budgeted in the water half of this division; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed change in Fund 174 would move funds from data processing to 

other professional services to fully fund the CSL flow meter contract recently approved by the City 

Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, any amendments made pursuant to this section to an originally adopted 

budget which exceed ten percent (10%) of the total amount appropriated or authorized to be 

expended in a particular department fund shall be published or posted within two (2) weeks of the 

action in a newspaper in the same manner as the final adopted budget. Separate amendments to an 

originally adopted budget during one fiscal year which affect a particular department fund shall be 

considered as one (1) amendment in determining whether the ten percent (10%) threshold requiring 

publication or posting has been reached. This publication or posted notice shall contain a 

description of the amendment, the amount of money and funds affected, and a detailed statement 

explaining the need and purpose of the amendment. The vote of each member of the municipality's 

governing authority on each amendment shall be included in the publication or posted notice. Miss. 

Code. Ann. §21-35-25 (West); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works recommends that the governing authorities 

amend the following accounts, as follows: 
 

From: Account      Amount     To: Account 

 

173 45135 6413   $    405,936.00   173 45135 6823 

173 45190 6413  $      99,863.00   173 45190 6823 

173 52290 6413   $    954,045.00   173 52290 6823 

173 45135 6485   $ 2,021,580.00   173 45135 6824 

173 45190 6485  $ 3,240,609.00  173 45190 6824 

173 52290 6485   $    855,264.00   173 52290 6824 

 

372 52290 6419   $   132,639.00   372 52290 6823 

 

031 52210 6111   $     22,480.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       3,000.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       2,247.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       8,000.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       2,088.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       1,850.00   031 52120 6516 

 

001 46110 6111   $    20,000.00   001 44830 6419 

001 46110 6111   $    11,080.00   001 46110 6240 

001 46110 6111   $      3,122.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6131   $      1,877.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6136   $         468.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6133   $      5,613.00   001 45010 6240 

 

174 94400 6847   $    40,000.00   174 94400 6419 

 

                                                                                  Total: 7,831,761.00 

 

NOW, IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the Department of Public Works Fiscal 

Year 2022-2023 budget be revised as follows: 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   124 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

From: Account      Amount     To: Account 

 

173 45135 6413   $    405,936.00   173 45135 6823 

173 45190 6413  $      99,863.00   173 45190 6823 

173 52290 6413   $    954,045.00   173 52290 6823 

173 45135 6485   $ 2,021,580.00   173 45135 6824 

173 45190 6485  $ 3,240,609.00  173 45190 6824 

173 52290 6485   $    855,264.00   173 52290 6824 

 

372 52290 6419   $   132,639.00   372 52290 6823 

 

031 52210 6111   $     22,480.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       3,000.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       2,247.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       8,000.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       2,088.00   031 52210 6489 

031 52210 6111   $       1,850.00   031 52120 6516 

 

001 46110 6111   $    20,000.00   001 44830 6419 

001 46110 6111   $    11,080.00   001 46110 6240 

001 46110 6111   $      3,122.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6131   $      1,877.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6136   $         468.00   001 45010 6240 

001 46110 6133   $      5,613.00   001 45010 6240 

 

174 94400 6847   $    40,000.00   174 94400 6419 

 

                                                                                  Total: 7,831,761.00 

IT IS, THEREFORE, FURTHER ORDERED pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. Section 

21-35-25, this budget revision shall be published or posted within two (2) weeks of approval, in a 

newspaper in the same manner as the final adopted budget. In accordance with Miss. Code Ann. 

Section 21-35-25, the published notice shall contain a description of the amendment, the amount 

of money and funds affected, and a detailed statement explaining the need and purpose of the 

amendment, as well as, the vote of each City Council member. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes.   

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

ORDER RATIFYING CONTRACTS RELATED TO THE EMERGENCY 

REPAIRS TO THALIA MARA HALL AND THE ARTS CENTER OF MISSISSIPPI 

IN PREPARATION FOR THE U.S.A. INTERNATIONAL BALLET 

COMPETITION.  

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson Department of Public Works and Department of Human 

and Cultural Services are currently in the process of preparing Thalia Mara Hall and the Arts 

Center of Mississippi for the USA International Ballet Competition (“USA IBC”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the USA IBC is a two-week Olympic-style competition for top young 

dancers from all over the world, which occurs every four (4) years in the City of Jackson and is 

scheduled to take place June 10, 2023 through June 24, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 2018 USA IBC was attended by more than 44,000 people generating a 

combined economic impact of $12.5 million for the City of Jackson and the State of Mississippi; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the USA IBC is scheduled to begin June 10, 2023 and there are necessary 

repairs which must take place at both Thalia Mara and the Arts Center of Mississippi prior to June 

10, 2023; and 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   125 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson previously contracted with Cooke Douglass Farr Lemons 

(“CDFL”) to produce a scope of work for Thalia Mara Hall; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has contracted Canizaro Cawthon Davis, A Professional Association 

to produce a scope of work for the Arts Center of Mississippi, which scope is to include an update 

to the existing public restrooms to bring them into compliance with the ADA due to performance 

issues with Construction Specialists, LLC, which recently caused the City to terminate that 

construction agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has authorized a contract with Benchmark Construction 

Corporation, whose principal office address is 1867 Crane Ridge Drive #200A, Jackson, MS 

39216, to provide general contractor services to assist the City of Jackson with completing the 

proposed scope of work for Thalia Mara Hall by June 1, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 31-7-13(k), due to the threat of economic loss 

based on the restricted time period, limitations of available equipment, materials and delivery 

schedules, and to protect and preserve the facilities, the City of Jackson invoked the emergency 

procurement procedure for the intended repairs to Thalia Mara and the Arts Center, a copy of 

which is attached hereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the emergency procurement process, the following proposals 

have been accepted for work or materials, which constitute a contract for the work, a copy of said 

contracts being attached to this Order and made a part of the minutes of this meeting: 

 

Vendor     Services/Materials     Amount 

 

Global Sector Security   Access Control Work     $   2,798.00 

West Architectural Specialities  Access Panel      $      595.00 

Scanlon Taylor    Millwork Millwork Change Order   $      184.00 

J.L. Roberts Mechanical, LLC  HVAC Work      $ 94,612.00 

Big John's Tree Service   Tree Trimming     $   6,250.00 

A Complete Flag Source   Flagpoles      $ 27,717.30 

West Architectural Specialities  Signage/Fire Extg Cabinets    $   3,250.00 

Benchmark Const. Corp.   Reimburse for Roto-Rooter    $      387.95 

Schindler Elevator Corp.   Escalator Repairs     $ 28,657.00 

Elite Paint     Add'l Painting; Granite Cleaning   $ 36,200.00 

 

Total $ 200,651.25 

 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the contracts for work listed in the proposals listed 

above at the amounts stated are hereby ratify. 

 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   126 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   127 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   128 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   129 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   130 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   131 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   132 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 

 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   133 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   134 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   135 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   136 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   137 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 
 

 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   138 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   139 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

 
 

 
 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   140 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

Council Member Lindsay moved adoption; Council Member Hartley seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

ORDER RATIFYING THE LEASING OF A FORKLIFT AND AUTHORIZING 

THE PAYMENT OF INVOICES TOTALLING $23,097.87 TO H&E EQUIPMENT 

SERVICES USED FOR WATER DONATED AND DELIVERED TO HAWKINS 

FIELD.  

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson had a water emergency which resulted in the donation 

and delivery of bottles of water from various sources between September 2022 and March 2023; 

and 

WHEREAS, the water donations were stored and received at Hawkins Field; and 

WHEREAS, a forklift was required to be used for the delivery and receipt of the water 

donations; and 

WHEREAS, the forklift was ordered by Randy Spell, the Superintendent of the City of 

Jackson Municipal garage from H& E Equipment Services; and 

WHEREAS, H& E Equipment Services tendered invoices to the City of Jackson; and 

WHEREAS, the invoices form H&E Equipment Services incorrectly state that the forklift 

was ordered by Cornell Wright; 

 

            WHEREAS, due to the circumstances of the emergency, the procurement of these services 

was done without prior approval through a purchase order by the governing authorities. 

 

   IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the rental of the forklift from H& E Equipment 

Services is ratified. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that payment of the invoices indicated in this order is 

approved. 

 

Council Member Grizzell moved adoption; Vice President Lee seconded. 

          _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

   

President Foote recognized Terry Williamson, Legal Counsel, who provided a brief overview 

of said item. 

                       _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

 

 

 

 

 

H&E Equipment Services Invoice 

No. 

Invoice 

Date 

Account 

Number 

Invoice 

Amount 

Telehandler 10K# 50’ Reach Forklift 96812119 9/23/2022 1004941 $4,642.73 

Telehandler 6K# 30’ Reach Forklift 96814803 9/23/2022 $2,765.02 

Telehandler 6K# 30’ Reach Forklift 96876413 9/23/2022 $2,615.02 

Telehandler 6K# 30’ Reach Forklift 96932921 11/18/2022 $2,615.02 

Telehandler 6K# 30’ Reach Forklift 96994398 12/16/2022 $2,615.02 

Telehandler 6K# 30’ Reach Forklift 97047276 1/23/2023 $2,615.02 

Telehandler 6K# 30’ Reach Forklift 97104649 2/21/2023 $2,615.02 

Telehandler 6K# 30’ Reach Forklift 97163209 3/21/2023 $2,615.02  

Total $23,097.87 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   141 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

Thereafter, President Foote, called for a vote of said item:  

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

There came on for consideration Agenda Item No. 17: 

 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTTORNEY TO ENTER 

INTO A BINDING APPRAISAL AGREEMENT WITH ZURICH INSURANCE IN 

THE MATTER OF CITY OF JACKSON V. ZURICH, INS., IN THE UNITED 

STATES DISTRICT COURT OF THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI; 

CAUSE NO. 3:19-CV-805-DPJ-FKP. President Foote stated said item would be taken 

up in Executive Session.  

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *   

 

ORDER REVIEWING AND CONTINUING AUGUST 29, 2022 STATE OF 

EMERGENCY.  

 

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2022, the Mayor issued a proclamation of emergency as a 

result of (1) excessive rainfall and extreme flooding, (2) the March 7, 2020 Safe Drinking Water 

Act (SDWA) Emergency Administrative Order (EAO); (3) the February 2021 system-wide failure 

due to extreme water conditions that caused pipes to freeze and lose pressure; (4) the July 1, 2021 

SDWA Administrative Order of Consent (AOC); (5) the July 29, 2022 Boil Water Notice which 

existed for more than thirty (30) days; and (6) the August 25, 2022 flooding of the Pearl River, 

which lead to problems with treating water at the O.B. Curtis Water Plant; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 33-15-17(d) of the Mississippi Code allows the mayor of a 

municipality to proclaim a local emergency and authorizes the governing body of a municipality 

to review and approve or disapprove the need for continuing the local emergency at its first regular 

meeting following such proclamation or at a special meeting; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 33-15-5 (h) of the Mississippi Code defines an emergency as “any 

occurrence, or threat thereof, whether natural, technological, or man-made, in war or in peace, 

which results or may result in substantial injury or harm to the population or substantial damage 

to loss of property;” and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 33-15-5 (g) of the Mississippi Code defines a local emergency as 

“the duly proclaimed existence of conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of person 

and property within the territorial limits of a…municipality caused by such conditions as…water 

pollution…or other natural or man-made conditions, which conditions are or are likely to be 

beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of the political subdivision 

and require the combined forces of other subdivisions or of the state to combat;” and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 33-15-17 (b) of the Mississippi Code, the City “is 

authorized to exercise the powers vested under [Section 33-15-1, et seq.,] in light of the exigencies 

of the extreme emergency situation without regard to time-consuming procedures and formalities 

prescribed by law pertaining to the performance of public work, entering into contracts, the 

incurring of obligations…and the expenditure of public funds…. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED THAT we the governing body of the City of 

Jackson, Mississippi, pursuant to the authority vested in the body by Section 33-l5-l7(d) of the 

Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, and in the public interest and for the general welfare of the 

City of Jackson, do hereby approve of the continued need for a civil emergency for the entire City 

of Jackson for the reasons set forth in this Order. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   142 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

ORDER REVIEWING AND CONTINUING STATE OF EMERGENCY.  

WHEREAS, on February 18, 2020, the Jackson City Council, pursuant to Section 33-15-

17(8(d) of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended, passed an Order Declaring the Need to 

Continue the State of Emergency that was issued on February 13, 2020 by Chokwe A. Lumumba, 

Mayor of the City of Jackson, Mississippi; and  

 

            WHEREAS, the Jackson City Council, in the February 18, 2020 Order, found that flood 

waters and wide spread drainage system issues had affected several Jackson creeks, including, but 

not limited to:  Belhaven Creek; Bogue Chitto Creek; Caney Creek; Eubanks Creek; Hanging 

Moss Creek; Lynch Creek; Purple Creek; Three Mile Creek; Town Creek; Travon Creek; and 

White Oak Creek; and 

 

            WHEREAS, the Jackson City Council, in the February 18, 2020 Order, found that the 

flood waters and wide spread drainage system issues caused extensive damages to homes, 

business, public property, and threatened the safety of the citizens and property of the City of 

Jackson, Mississippi, requiring the exercise of extraordinary measures; and 

 

            WHEREAS, the Jackson City Council, in the February 18, 2020 Order, found that all 

efforts should be taken to protect people and property in consideration of the health, safety, and 

welfare of the City’s residents and the protection of their property within the affected areas; and 

 

            WHEREAS, the Jackson City Council, on March 17, 2020; April 14, 2020; May 12, 2020, 

June 9, 2020, July 7, 2020, August 4, 2020, September 1, 2020, September 29, 2020, October 27, 

2020, November 24, 2020, December 22, 2020, January 19, 2021, February 17, 2021, March 30, 

2021, April 27, 2021, May 25, 2021, June 22, 2021, July 20, 2021, August 31, 2021, September 

28, 2021, October 26, 2021, November 23, 2021, December 21, 2021, January 25, 2022, February 

15, 2022, March 29, 2022, April 26, 2022, May 24, 2022, June 21, 2022, July 19, 2022, August 

30, 2022, September 27, 2022, October 25, 2022, November 22, 2022,  December 20, 2022, 

January 31, 2023, February 28, 2023 and March 21, 2023 pursuant to Section 33-15-17(8)(d) of 

the Mississippi Code of 1972, reviewed the need for and continued the local emergency; and 

 

            WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 33-15-17(8)(d) of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as 

amended, the Jackson City Council has again reviewed the need for continuing the local 

emergency and determined that the emergency should be continued. 

 

            IT IS, THEREFORE, HEREBY ORDERED that said Order Declaring the Need to 

Continue the Declared State of Emergency as delineated by the Jackson City Council, remains in 

full force and effect and shall be reviewed again in thirty (30) days in accordance with Section 33-

15-17(8(d) of the Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended. 

 

Council Member Lindsay moved adoption; Vice President Lee seconded. 

          _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 

President Foote recognized Fidelis Malembeka, Chief Financial Officer and Terry 

Williamson, Legal Counsel, who provided a brief overview of said item. 

                       _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

 

Thereafter, President Foote, called for a vote of said item:  

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   143 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

There came on for Discussion, Agenda Item No. 20:  

  

DISCUSSION: LITIGATION: President Foote stated said item would be discussed later 

in the meeting during Executive Session.  

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

DISCUSSION: RELOCATION OF WSBA AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS 

LOCATED AT THE METROCENTER MALL: President Foote recognized Council 

Member Grizzell who expressed concerns in regards to the relocation of WSBA causing 

some customers to have to pay service fees at bill payment stations because they could not 

drive to Pearl to pay in person. President Foote recognized Chokwe Antar Lumumba, 

Mayor, who stated that City officials were aware of the potential problem and were looking 

for ways to address it.  

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *  

 

The following reports/announcements were provided during the meeting: 

• Council Member Hartley announced the following: 

 

▪ Jackson Public Schools will hold community meetings at Pecan Park Elementary 

School April 25, 2023, Isabelle Elementary School April 26,2023, and Jim Hill 

High School April 27, 2023 at 5:30 each night.  

▪ Offer condolences and request prayers for Deputy Clerk Fran Bridges for the 

passing of her brother.  

▪ Ask for prayers for the Stokes family.  

 

• Mayor Chokwe Antar Lumumba announced the following: 

 

▪ Acknowledged and recognized all City Clerks, Council Clerks and Deputy Clerks 

for their hard work and dedication during Municipal Clerks Week April 30th 

through May 6th.  

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

President Foote recognized Council Member Banks who stated that the Council had received 

the following report for review: MONTHLY REPORT OF PRIVILEGE TAXES AS 

REQUIRED ACCORDING TO SECTION 27-17-501 OF THE MISSISSIPPI CODE 

ANNOTATED OF 1972.  

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

President Foote recognized Council Member Banks who moved, seconded by Council Member 

Hartley to go into Closed Session to take up Agenda Items 8,7, and 20. The motion prevailed by 

the following vote: 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lindsay and Lee. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes.   

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

President Foote announced to the public that the Council voted to go into Closed Session to 

discuss going into Executive Session regarding “Potential Litigation and Litigation”.  

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

During Closed Session, Council Member Hartley moved, seconded by Vice President Lee to go 

into Executive Session regarding “Potential Litigation and Litigation”. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lindsay and Lee. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   144 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes.   

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

President Foote recognized Council Member Grizzell who moved, seconded by Council 

Member Hartley, to come out of Executive Session.  The motion prevailed by the following vote: 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lindsay and Lee. 

Nays – None. 

Absent – Stokes.   

 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

President Foote announced to the public that the Council voted to come out of Executive Session 

and action was taken. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

During Executive Session, the Council took action on Agenda Item No. 17: 

 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTTORNEY TO ENTER 

INTO A BINDING APPRAISAL AGREEMENT WITH ZURICH INSURANCE IN 

THE MATTER OF CITY OF JACKSON V. ZURICH, INS., IN THE UNITED 

STATES DISTRICT COURT OF THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI; 

CAUSE NO. 3:19-CV-805-DPJ-FKP. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Jackson filed a lawsuit against Zurich Insurance in the United 

States District Court of Southern District of Mississippi for issues arising out of insurance coverage 

for damaged structures sustained in the hail storm of 2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of the City Attorney vigorously prosecuted the action; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of the City Attorney participated in a Settlement Conference with 

Zurich Insurance and the United Stated Magistrate Judge; and 

 

WHEREAS, approximately 160 structures were damaged in the 2013 hail storm, and 

neither the City of Jackson nor Zurich Insurance could agree on the value of the property or the 

amount of loss; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commercial Property Conditions of the insurance policy with Zurich 

Insurance allows the parties to submit to a binding appraisal process in the event that the parties 

cannot agree on the value of loss; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the binding appraisal process, an independent umpire will 

determine the value of loss for each structure; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of the City Attorney believes that the best interest of the City of 

Jackson would be served by foregoing costly and lengthy litigation and entering into a Binding 

Appraisal Agreement with Zurich Insurance Company to have an independent umpire resolve this 

matter. 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Office of the City Attorney is authorized to enter 

into a Binding Appraisal Agreement with Zurich Insurance to resolve the pending federal court 

litigation in the United States District Court of the Southern District of Mississippi, Cause No. 

3:19-cv-805-DPJ-FKP. 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Office of the City Attorney shall be authorized to 

perform those acts necessary to affect the resolution of this matter. 

 

Council Member Banks moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

 

Yeas – Banks, Foote, Grizzell, Hartley, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – None. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   145 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

Absent – Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * *   

 

ORDER APPROVING CLAIMS NUMBER 28732 to 28745 APPEARING AT 

PAGES 394 TO 400 INCLUSIVE THEREON, ON MUNICIPAL “DOCKET OF 

CLAIMS”, IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,590,283.99 AND MAKING 

APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF. 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that claims numbered 28732 to 28745 appearing at pages 

394 to 400, inclusive thereon in the Municipal “Docket of Claims”, in the aggregate amount of 

$3,590,283.99 are hereby approved for payment and said amount is expressly appropriated for the 

immediate payment thereof. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that there is appropriated from the various funds the sums 

necessary to be transferred to other funds for the purpose of paying the claims as follows: 

 

                                                                                                               TO 

                                                                                           ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

         FROM:                                                                                      FUND 

GENERAL FUND   833,505.87 

SEIZURE & FORF PORP-STATE  268,203.29 

TECHNOLOGY FUND  67,968.66 

PARKS & RECR. FUND  102,418.84 

LANDFILL/SANITATION FUND  205,768.77 

FIRE PROTECTION  24,997.00 

STATE TORT CLAIMS FUND  56,854.30 

WATER/SEWER OP & MAINT FUND  106,397.34 

WATER/SEWER CAPITAL IMPR FUND  166,649.80 

EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE FUND  6,972.86 

KELLOGG FOUNDATION PROJECT   2,708.34 

NARCOTICS EVIDENCE ESCROW   1,334.00 

HOUSING COM DEV ACT (CDBG) FD  13,761.72 

INFRASTRUCTURE BOND 2020 $32M  58,162.84 

1% INFRASTRUCTURE TAX  350,303.24 

MADISON SEWAGE DISP OP & MAINT  39.19 

WATER/SEWER CAP IMP NOTE 7M  4,148.24 

TRANSPORTATION FUND   79,144.95 

JXN CONVENTION & VISITORS BUR   262,125.11 

2018 TIF BOND $4.6M – EASTOVER   92,796.14 

P E G ACCESS – PROGRAMMING FUND  7,476.88 

CDBG COVID CARES  1,258.00 

ZOOLOGICAL PARK  13,631.97 

LIBRARY FUND  9,453.50 

DFA – SB2971 – PETE BROWN GOLF     4,800.00 

DFA – THALIA MARA HALL $2M  26,806.00 

MDOT – CMPDD PROJECTS   761,983.15 

2022 GO PLANETARIUM BOND $7.5M  60,613.99 

TOTAL                                                                                                                     $3,590,283.99 

 

Vice President Lee moved adoption; Council Member Grizzell seconded. 

          _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

    

President Foote recognized Fidelis Malembeka, Chief Financial Officer and Terry 

Williamson, Legal Counsel who provided a brief overview of said item. 

                       _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 10:00 A.M.                   146 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

Thereafter, President Foote, called for a vote of said item:  

 

Yeas – Grizzell and Lee.  

Nays – Banks, Foote, Hartley. 

Absent – Lindsay and Stokes. 

Note: Said item failed for a lack of a majority vote. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

Note: Council Member Lindsay left the meeting during the discussion.  

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, it was unanimously voted to 

adjourn until the Special Council/Citizen’s Agenda Meeting at 6:00 p.m. on April 27, 2023.  At 

11:21 a.m., the Council stood adjourned.   

 

PREPARED BY:    APPROVED: 

 

                                   ____________                                                     ,______         ___                        

CLERK OF COUNCIL              COUNCIL PRESIDENT    DATE 

  

                                         ____________     

      MAYOR 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

                                         ____________     

      CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

 

 





SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     THURSDAY, ARPIL 27, 2023 6:00 P.M.                   147 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED that a Special Meeting of the City Council of Jackson, 

Mississippi, was called by a majority of the City Council Members and notices having been placed 

by the Clerk of Council at 12:59 p.m. Wednesday, April 26, 2023 in the Clerk of Council’s Office, 

electronic notifications to all Council Members, on the City's website and on the public bulletin 

board in City Hall, relative to: (1) Claims.  (2) Public Comments:  Citizen Agenda.  The meeting 

was convened in the Council Chambers located at 219 S. President Street at 6:00 p.m. on April 27, 

2023 being the fourth Thursday of said month, when and where the following things were had and 

done to wit: 

  

 Present: Council Members: Angelique Lee, Council Vice President, Ward 2 (via 

teleconference); Brian C. Grizzell, Ward 4; Aaron Banks, Ward 6 (via 

teleconference) and Virgi Lindsay, Ward 7.  Directors: Safiya Omari, Chief 

of Staff; Shanekia Mosley-Jordan, Clerk of the Council; Sabrina Shelby, 

Chief Deputy Clerk of the Council and Carrie Johnson, Deputy City 

Attorney. 

 

 Absent:   Ashby Foote, Council President, Ward 1; Kenneth I. Stokes, Ward 3 and 

Vernon Hartley, Ward 5. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
  

The meeting was called to order by Council Member Lindsay. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

ORDER APPROVING CLAIMS NUMBER 28732 to 28745 APPEARING AT 

PAGES 394 TO 400 INCLUSIVE THEREON, ON MUNICIPAL “DOCKET OF 

CLAIMS”, IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,590,283.99 AND MAKING 

APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF. 

 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that claims numbered 28732 to 28745 appearing at pages 

394 to 400, inclusive thereon in the Municipal “Docket of Claims”, in the aggregate amount of 

$3,590,283.99 are hereby approved for payment and said amount is expressly appropriated for the 

immediate payment thereof. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that there is appropriated from the various funds the sums 

necessary to be transferred to other funds for the purpose of paying the claims as follows: 

 

                                                                                                                  TO 

                                                                                               ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

         FROM:                                                                                         FUND 

GENERAL FUND   833,505.87 

SEIZURE & FORF PORP-STATE  268,203.29 

TECHNOLOGY FUND  67,968.66 

PARKS & RECR. FUND  102,418.84 

LANDFILL/SANITATION FUND  205,768.77 

FIRE PROTECTION  24,997.00 

STATE TORT CLAIMS FUND  56,854.30 

WATER/SEWER OP & MAINT FUND  106,397.34 

WATER/SEWER CAPITAL IMPR FUND  166,649.80 

EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE FUND  6,972.86 

KELLOGG FOUNDATION PROJECT   2,708.34 

NARCOTICS EVIDENCE ESCROW   1,334.00 

HOUSING COM DEV ACT (CDBG) FD  13,761.72 

INFRASTRUCTURE BOND 2020 $32M  58,162.84 

1% INFRASTRUCTURE TAX  350,303.24 

MADISON SEWAGE DISP OP & MAINT  39.19 

shanekiam
Text Box
Consent Agenda Item No. 5May 23, 2023(S.Jordan, Foote)



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

                     THURSDAY, ARPIL 27, 2023 6:00 P.M.                   148 

MINUTE BOOK 6X 
 

WATER/SEWER CAP IMP NOTE 7M  4,148.24 

TRANSPORTATION FUND   79,144.95 

JXN CONVENTION & VISITORS BUR   262,125.11 

2018 TIF BOND $4.6M – EASTOVER   92,796.14 

P E G ACCESS – PROGRAMMING FUND  7,476.88 

CDBG COVID CARES  1,258.00 

ZOOLOGICAL PARK  13,631.97 

LIBRARY FUND  9,453.50 

DFA – SB2971 – PETE BROWN GOLF     4,800.00 

DFA – THALIA MARA HALL $2M  26,806.00 

MDOT – CMPDD PROJECTS   761,983.15 

2022 GO PLANETARIUM BOND $7.5M  60,613.99 

TOTAL                                                                                                                      $3,590,283.99 

 

Council Member Grizzell moved adoption; Council Member Lindsay seconded. 

          _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _    

 

Council Member Lindsay recognized Fidelis Malembeka, Chief Financial Officer, who 

provided a brief overview of said item. 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

 

Thereafter, Council Member Lindsay, called for a vote of said item:  

 

Yeas – Grizzell, Lee and Lindsay. 

Nays – Banks. 

Absent – Foote, Hartley and Stokes. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Council Member Lindsay recognized Janelle Westley-Edwards, who 

presented the Council with a collaboration plan that would bring fun and fitness to the City of 

Jackson and requested a letter of support from the Administration. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Council Member Lindsay recognized Vinson Gibbs, who expressed 

concerns regarding the members of the City Council and the Administration fighting against each 

other and should be working together for the citizens of Jackson. 

 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, it was unanimously voted to 

adjourn until the Regular Council Meeting at 10:00 a.m. on May 9, 2023.  At 6:26 p.m., the Council 

stood adjourned.   

 

PREPARED BY:    APPROVED: 

 

                                   ____________                                                     ,  ______         ___                        

CLERK OF COUNCIL              COUNCIL PRESIDENT    DATE 

        

                                         ____________     

      MAYOR 

      ATTEST:  

 

                                         ____________     

      CITY CLERK 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 




















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































